

Republic of the Philippines
SANGGUNIANG PANLUNGSOD
CITY OF SURIGAO

MINUTES OF THE 43RD REGULAR SESSION OF THE SANGGUNIANG
PANLUNGSOD OF THE CITY OF SURIGAO HELD AT THE SP
SESSION HALL ON DECEMBER 6, 2023.

PRESENT:

- | | |
|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| Hon. Alfonso S. Casurra | - City Vice Mayor (Presiding Officer) |
| Hon. Sebastian Ric. A. Nagas | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Cacer R. Azarcon | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Joenil B. Aldonza | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Joel E. Tinio | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Joshua Emilio S. Geli | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Baltazar C. Abian | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Noel Christian G. Catre, Jr. | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Jose Expeditus B. Bayana | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Joseph Joey S. Yuipco | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Karl Duane A. Casurra | - City Councilor |
| Hon. Jenelyn Edulzura | - SK Federated President |

The session was called to order at 2:59 o'clock in the afternoon of December 6, 2023

OPENING PRAYER

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

OPENING PRAYER

In the name of the Father, the Son,
and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.
Gracious and holy Father, please give me:
Intellect to understand you, reason to discern you, diligence to seek you, wisdom to find you, a
spirit to know you, a heart to meditate upon you, ears to hear you, eyes to see you, a tongue to
proclaim you, a way of life pleasing you, patience to wait for you, and perseverance to look for
you.
Grant us: a perfect end, your holy presence, a blessed resurrection, and life everlasting.
Amen.

In the name of the Father, the Son,
and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.

SINGING OF THE PHILIPPINE NATIONAL ANTHEM

55
56
57 **ROLL CALL**
58

59 The roll call was conducted with all the members of the Sangguniang Panlungsod
60 listed herein as present in attendance, and thereafter a **QUORUM** was declared.
61

62 - - - - -
63

64 **PERUSAL AND APPROVAL OF THE**
65 **PREVIOUS MINUTES**
66

67 Before the approval of the Minutes, Acting SP Secretary, Mrs. Edna B. Siega read
68 the resolutions that were passed and approved in the previous regular and special sessions.
69

70 Thereafter, the Presiding Officer made a remark with regard Resolution No. 271
71 that the budget for the Economic Enterprise and General fund must reflect on the title
72 thereof in which the Secretary noted the same for correction.
73

74 Honorable Joel E. Tinio was recognized and presented a motion for the approval
75 of the Minutes of the previous regular and special session, seconded by Honorable
76 Sebastian Ric A. Nagas, it was unanimously
77

78 **RESOLVED:** That the Minutes of the Regular Session held on November 30,
79 2023, re: Resolution Nos. 259-273 be as it is hereby approved.
80

81 - - - - -
82

83 **MATTERS OF INFORMATION**
84

85 The Presiding Officer suspended the rules and requested Mr. Nelson S. Alcala and
86 Atty. Jeffrey P. Galido to enlighten the body with regard Resolution No. 267. **RULES ARE**
87 **SUSPENDED.**
88

89 It was asked how will the procurement proceed given that the items to be procured are
90 varying from each beneficiary and such beneficiaries are expecting to receive cash instead of
91 items or goods. Atty. Galido answered that the BAC will use accounting method in classifying
92 the items and categorize them so that procurement will be done by lot.
93

94 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:**
95

96 *Sigi, thank you, gentlemen. Basta e-clear ra namo sa ijo na. Kamo nay paigo nan ini kay there*
97 *will be a turnover of the amount, but e-download an kwarta sa City. Okay, nanawag man kaina an*
98 *taga DOLE sa amo.*
99

100 **NELSON S. ALCALA:**
101

102 *Kita nay mag PR.*
103

104 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:**
105

106 *Di kamo na gani lagi, amo jaon amo taglaong kon unhon jaon na nolaong sila "unhon man*
107 *jaon Sir na lain-lain man mga panginahanglan nan mga kuan"... Sige, thank you.*
108

109 **ATTY. JEFFREY GALIDO/ RESOURCE SPEAKER:**
110

111 *Thank you, Sir.*

RULES ARE REINSTATED.

**INCLUSION, AMENDMENT AND
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA**

Prior the approval of the Agenda, Honorable Joshua Emilio S. Geli moved for inclusion the committee report of Committee on Health and Sanitation under Committee Report. Thereafter, on motion of Honorable Sebastian Ric A. Nagas, duly seconded by Honorable Joel E. Tinio, it was unanimously

RESOLVED, to approve, as it is hereby approved, the agenda of the 42nd Regular Session of the Sangguniang Panlungsod dated 30 November 2023, as prepared and presented with one inclusion.

FIRST READING:

- Proposed Ordinance, An Ordinance Establishing the Emergency Medical and Response Center of the City of Surigao, Appropriating Funds Thereof and for Other Purposes.

REFERRAL TO COMMITTEES:

a. Committee on Appropriations —

- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as **URGENT** re: Local Finance Committee Resolution No.030, series 2023, A Resolution Recommending to the Local Chief Executive and the Sangguniang Panlungsod the Granting of Additional Wages for Job Order and Contract of Service (COS) Personnel
- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as **URGENT** re: Local Finance Committee Resolution No.031, series 2023, A Resolution Recommending to the Local Chief Executive and the Sangguniang Panlungsod the Granting of Year-End Cash Incentive to Regular Employees in Line with the Surigao City Employees Association (SURCEMA) Collective Negotiations Agreement
- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as **URGENT** re: Local Finance Committee Resolution No.032, series 2023, A Resolution Recommending the Granting of **Performance Based Bonus (PBB)** for Qualified City Officials and Employees, and the Priority Inclusion of Appropriation for Such Purpose in the Supplemental Budget For CY 2023
- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as **URGENT**, re letter of Atty. Jeffrey P. Galido, City Budget Officer, submitting the Supplemental Budget No. 07 for FY 2023 in the amount of Nine Million Fifteen Thousand Two Hundred Eighty Two Pesos and 18/100 (P9,015,282.18)

b. Committee on Youth and Sports Development and Committee on Rules—

- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as **URGENT**, requesting the Sangguniang Panlungsod to pass a resolution authorizing the City Mayor to enter into a **Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)** with Surigao Esports Collective

(SURECOL), represented by its Chief Gaming Officer for the holding of “Mayor Paul Dumlao Mobile Legends BB Christmas Cup 2023” on December 23, 2023

c. Committee on Urban Development and Land Use—

- Letter from Atty. Lex Joshua Andrew U. Silvosa, City Legal Officer, indorsing favorably for a Resolution Granting to the Families Affected by the Proposed Road Project at Baybay Magallanes, Brgy. Washington, this City, the Privilege of Being Relocated to Any Relocation sites of the City

- - - - -

COMMITTEE REPORT

Councilor Geli was recognized.

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon to everyone. I have three committee reports, the first of which is, uh, the resolution authorizing the City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao, II to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement between the City Government of Surigao City and Caraga Regional Hospital with regards to the PhilHealth Konsulta Package.

Committee Hearing was conducted on December 4 and was attended by the members of the committee, together with the concerned Department Heads and stakeholders involved. During the meeting, it was explained that the same MOA is a prerequisite of the PhilHealth Konsulta Package Program of the Department of Health. This program will give members of the PhilHealth Konsulta Package Free Services limited the list of, list of the services stated in the MOA. The members will be referred by the City, Surigao City Health Office to the Caraga Regional Hospital who will render the services. Our City Health Officer, Dr. Benjielita P. Notada, also explained that the Local Government will course through the payment of the services and the bill will be shoulder by the PhilHealth funds, subject to the usual auditing and accounting procedure.

With this Mr. Chair, the recommendation as Chairman of the Committee on Health and Sanitation, I, as Chairman, hereby recommends for a passage of a resolution authorizing the City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao, II to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement between the LGU Surigao City and Caraga Regional Hospital with regards to the PhilHealth Konsulta package.

With this Mr. Chair, I move for the adoption of my committee report.

The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Under discussion, Hon. Catre had some clarifications with regard the MOA.

Councilor Catre was recognized.

HON. NOEL CHRISTIAN CATRE/CITY COUNCILOR:

Thank you, thank you, Mr. Chairman. May I ask the honorable Geli is a, this is accurate? This, um, section 1.1 of the first MOA mentions that, uh, this services, lipid profile, the blood testing, sugar testing, etc. will be now performed by Caraga Regional Hospital?

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI/CITY COUNCILOR:

Yes, with the referral of the City Health Office.

HON. NOEL CHRISTIAN CATRE/CITY COUNCILOR:

With the referral, does it follow that the City Health Office will no longer perform this, uh, test?

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

During our Committee Report we also have, we can also render this services, however, we are also limited... the number of, we call it reagents, if we are out of reagents for those test then we can also refer them to Caraga Regional Hospital.

HON. NOEL CHRISTIAN G. CATRE, JR.:

Okay, yes Mr. Chairman, because if I remember correctly during the time of Dr. Plandano, he mentioned that even private hospitals would submit their, what do you call this, specimen to the City Health, so we will earn more and our machines actually are better compared than some of the private hospitals here in Surigao City Mr. Chairman. So, my question is what happened to our machines? Why are we doing this now?

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Is this services in addition to what the city is providing?

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

Yes, Mr. Chair.

HON. NOEL CHRISTIAN G. CATRE, JR.

And also Mr. Chairman, I believe also that city health is the cheapest among the institution conducting...

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Yes, go ahead you have the floor you can just to answer the query directly.

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

This services is an addition to the services that can be rendered by the City Health Office and at the same time the Caraga Regional Hospital will be paid through the Philhealth fund...just be coursed through by the city, so the city will not be actually spending money for this because the billing will all be coursed through our city health office.

Dr. Benjielita Notada was invited in the session to enlighten the august body with regard the two resolutions that would authorize the City Mayor to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement with the Caraga Regional Hospital and NMD Drugstore.

RULES ARE SUSPENDED.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Rules are suspended. There is now the Committee Report regarding these two resolutions that would authorize the City Mayor to enter into a memorandum of agreement with Caraga Regional Hospital with regard to this so-called Phil Health Konsulta Package, Dra. Now there was a query that was posed by Councilor Catre as to the services that with the rendered under this memorandum of Agreement because according to him we are providing for this services at the City Health Office and according to the proponent this is in addition to what is being provided

for as services by the city health because this will be undertaken by the Caraga Regional Hospital through a referral system. So, can you enlighten us on this?

DRA. BENJIELITA NOTADA:

Okay, good afternoon Vice, good afternoon everyone, I would like just to kuan na this Konsulta Package we are already accredited for the 2023 and this is the reapplication for the renewal of our 2024 Konsulta Package, so within this Konsulta Package Vice we are encouraging all the Phil Health member to be part or registered to the City Health Office. We are given, since we are two Doctors in City Health Office we are given a 40,000 members to be registered, so once this registered Phil Health member will have the konsulta or consultation in the City Health Office but at the time na magpakunsolta and then we, the patient is kanang...she/he is needed to be x-ray, needed of an x-ray or any laboratory services but at that time or ultra sound but at that time that service is of short sa ato sa city health office specially the x-rays since the x-ray machine is not yet delivered or dili pa available sa ato sa city health office then that's..this is what this MOA is all about. So, amo siya e refer sa Caraga Regional Hospital so that ang Caraga Regional Hospital will give the service but Caraga Regional Hospital will bill not the patient but the city health office or the LGU itself from the fund that we will receive from the Phil health.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

I think that's clear now that this is actually, if our City Health Office cannot render the services that are stated here, they will refer the patient or the person to the Caraga Regional Hospital for purposes of conducting the specimen.

It was clarified that if and when the City Health Office can no longer cater or render the services needed by the patients, they will refer the patients to Caraga Regional Hospital. The patients will not pay for the services that they will avail provided that they are registered members of the Philhealth Konsulta Package. The Caraga Regional Hospital will then bill the City Government and the City Government will bill the Philhealth. The payment for the same will be downloaded to the City Government from the Philhealth, then the City Government will facilitate the payment to the Caraga Regional Hospital. The same process also applies to the MOA with the NMD Drusgtore.

Hon. Catre asked Dr. Notada if there are still private hospitals that submit specimen for blood chemistry as it was the practice before. The latter answered that there are no more because they already implemented control with regard specimen examination.

Hon. Catre also questioned the prices of the services offered by the City Health Office which are covered by Philhealth Konsulta Package in which Dr. Notada answered that it is based on the recommended national government prices.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Okay, so these two are, although, separate but the explanation is, the process is still the same. Ah first is, City Health if it is not available, either services or medicines, the person will go to the Caraga Regional services for these specimen services or health services. But for the medicines, it will be the NMP Drugstore. And then, they would, Caraga or NMP, bill and forward it to City Health, City Health will be the one to bill Philhealth.

DR. BENJIELITA NOTADA (CHO):

Yes, Vice. I just want to clarify for the record, dili sija automatic Vice na, example, ganahan ra ako magpa-lipid profile, mo automatic ko kanha sa City Health. No, it's the doctor who will decide if you really need that service or not.

Hon. Bayana was recognized.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Will the procurement law not apply to the case of NMP Drugstore?

DR. BENJIELITA NOTADA (CHO):

Waya ra ba sad ko kabayo jaon, Atty.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Jari man si BAC Chairman. Dili mo apply an procurement law?

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Daan na man i-procure ini, ihatag ra kan man.

ATTY. JEFFREY P. GALIDO (BAC):

Honorable Sir, may I answer also. As to the query whether the procurement law will be applicable, I think there is no more...it will not be applied here in the City because the City will not procure anymore the medicines from them. So, we will not anymore be...what we will be doing is simply a facilitator to the Konsulta Package and we will not any more do the procurement as like with the other MOA that we had entered. (Inaudible conversation) Sila na daan. If the Caraga will follow their procurement law, and if since NMP I think, is a private institution then he will not be under procurement law, Sir. Thank you very much.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

That would be all, Mr. Chairman.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

So, Okay na? Thank you very much, Dra. Notada. That's good of you that you were able to come to clarify this so that we can approve this. We will reinstate the rules.

RULES ARE REINSTATED.

There being no more discussion, a motion was presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

RESOLUTION NO. 276 - 2023

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE HONORABLE CITY MAYOR PABLO YVES L. DURLAO II TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT OF SURIGAO CITY AND CARAGA REGIONAL HOSPITAL, RELATIVE TO THE PHILHEALTH KONSULTA PACKAGE.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of an indorsement indorsement from the City Mayor, requesting the City Council to pass a resolution authorizing the him to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with Caraga Regional Hospital in view of the requirement by Philhealth to ensure provisions of medicines and laboratory services;

WHEREAS, a committee hearing was conducted on December 4, 2023, attended by members of the committee, concerned department heads, and stakeholders, wherein

clarification was provided that the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is a prerequisite of the Philhealth Konsulta Package Program of the Department of Health;

WHEREAS, the program aims to provide Philhealth Konsulta Package members with free services outlined in the Memorandum of Agreement, and in cases where these services are unavailable at the Surigao City Health Office, said office is authorized to manage the referral process, directing members to the Caraga Regional Hospital;

WHEREAS, Dr. Benjielita P. Notada, City Health Officer, emphasized the Local Government's commitment to facilitating payment for these services, with associated costs covered by the PhilHealth fund, subject to standard auditing and accounting procedures;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Joshua Emilio S. Geli, duly seconded by Honorable Sebastian Ric A. Nagas it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass to a resolution authorizing the Honorable City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II to enter into a memorandum of agreement between the Local Government Unit of Surigao City and Caraga Regional Hospital, relative to the PhilHealth Konsulta Package.

RESOLVED FURTHER: that copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Health Office, and Caraga Regional Hospital, for their information and guidance.

- - - - -

Councilor Geli continued.

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

A committee report [hearing] was also conducted on the same day, December 4 and it was also explained in the MOA that this will be pre-requisite for the Philhealth Konsulta Package of the Department of Health. This program will give members of the Philhealth Konsulta Package free medicines, limited to the list of the services stated in the MOA. I had, I still haven't received the list but I will just annex this on my committee report.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

E-annex rakan.

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

The members will be referred by the Surigao City Health Office to the NMP drugstore for the release of the medicines. And as the same committee report before it was also explained that the Local Government will course through the payment of the services or the payment of the medicines which will be shouldered by the Philhealth fund subject to the usual auditing and accounting procedure.

As Chairman of the Committee on Health and Sanitation, I hereby recommends for the passage of a resolution authorizing the City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement between the LGU Surigao City and NMP Drugstore with regards to the Philhealth Konsulta Package. I so move, Mr. Chair.

The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

RESOLUTION NO. 277 - 2023

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE HONORABLE CITY MAYOR PABLO YVES L. DURLAO II TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT OF SURIGAO CITY AND NMP DRUGSTORE, RELATIVE TO THE PHILHEALTH KONSULTA PACKAGE.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of an indorsement from the City Mayor, requesting the City Council to pass a resolution authorizing the him to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with NMP Drugstore in view of the requirement by Philhealth to ensure provisions of medicines and laboratory services;

WHEREAS, in a committee hearing on December 4, 2023, attended by Committee Members, concerned Department Heads, and stakeholders, it was clarified that the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is a prerequisite for implementation of the Philhealth Konsulta Package Program by the Department of Health;

WHEREAS, the Philhealth Konsulta Package Program provides members with complimentary medicine, as specified in the Memorandum of Agreement, with the Surigao City Health Office responsible for referring members to the NMP Drugstore for the release of the prescribed medicines;

WHEREAS, Dr. Benjielita P. Notada, City Health Officer, emphasized the Local Government's commitment to facilitating payment for these services, with associated costs covered by the PhilHealth fund, subject to standard auditing and accounting procedures;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Joshua Emilio S. Geli, duly seconded by Honorable Sebastian Ric A. Nagas it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass to a resolution authorizing the Honorable City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II to enter into a memorandum of agreement between the Local Government Unit of Surigao City and NMP Drugstore, relative to the PhilHealth Konsulta Package.

RESOLVED FURTHER: that copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Health Office, and NMP Drugstore, for their information and guidance.

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

I have last one, Mr. Chair.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

Go ahead.

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

This with the connection to the request from the CDC that, the CDC Resolution No.11 of 2023, Approving the Proposed Construction of Hazardous Medical Waste Facility within the Surigao Waste Treatment Facility/Surigao Sanitary Landfill located at Barangay Cagniog, to be included in the AIP 2024.

It was found that the CDC Resolution No. 11 of 2023 was passed and the project/facility was estimated to cost, the capital will cost 70M to be sourced from external sources. This project is projected to be a Hazardous Medical Waste Disposal facility for the city and the neighboring municipalities and provinces, for the handling and treatment of healthcare wastes.

Recommendation:

As Chairman of the Committee on Health and Sanitation, I hereby move to include CDC Resolution No 11, into the Annual Investment Plan of 2024.

With that, I move for the adoption of my committee report, Mr. Chair.

The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

278

RESOLUTION NO. 278 - 2023

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE INCLUSION OF CITY DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL (CDC) RESOLUTION NO. 11, “APPROVING THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OF HAZARDOUS MEDICAL WASTE FACILITY WITHIN THE SURIGAO WASTE TREATMENT FACILITY/SURIGAO SANITARY LANDFILL LOCATED AT BARANGAY CAGNIOG, SURIGAO CITY.” IN THE ANNUAL INVESTMENT PLAN FOR THE YEAR 2024.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of an indorsement indorsement from the City Mayor, forwarding to the City Council the City Development Council (CDC) Resolution No.11, Approving the Proposed Construction of Hazardous Medical Waste Facility within the Surigao Waste Treatment Facility/Surigao Sanitary Landfill located at Barangay Cagniog, Surigao City for inclusion in the AIP 2024;

WHEREAS, the Hazardous Medical Waste Disposal facility is estimated to have a capital cost of 70 million, to be sourced from external funds;

WHEREAS, said project aims to serve the city and neighboring municipalities and provinces, handling and treating healthcare wastes;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Joshua Emilio S. Geli, duly seconded by Honorable Sebastian Ric A. Nagas it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution approving the inclusion of City Development Council (CDC) Resolution No. 11, “Approving the Proposed Construction of Hazardous Medical Waste Facility within the Surigao Waste Treatment Facility/Surigao Sanitary Landfill located at Barangay Cagniog, Surigao City.” in the Annual Investment Plan for the Year 2024.

RESOLVED FURTHER: that copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Development Council (CDC), and all concerned, this city, for their information and guidance.

- - - - -

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

Next to report is Councilor Jose Expeditus B. Bayana of the Committee on Appropriations.

HON JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman. Good afternoon to my colleagues.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

Go ahead.

HON JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

The subject of the Committee Report is the City Disaster Risk Reduction and Management Council Resolution No. 4, Series of 2023.

The Resolution of the City Disaster Risk Reduction and Management Council or CDRRMC seeks to realign the amount of Eight Million Pesos (Php 8,000,000.00) originally appropriated for the rehabilitation of the CDRRMC warehouse to repair the command center building in the amount of Four Million Pesos (Php 4,000,000.00) and rehabilitation of the CCTV cameras of the city, also in the amount of Four Million Pesos (Php 4,000,000.00). The Committee on Appropriation finds the request to be reasonable and in order.

It is therefore recommended that the realignment be approved. May I move for the adoption of the committee report, Mr. Chairman.

The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

RESOLUTION NO. 279 - 2023

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REALIGNMENT OF THE AMOUNT OF EIGHT MILLION PESOS (P8,000,000.00) FROM CDRRMO WAREHOUSE TO FOUR MILLION PESOS (PHP 4,000,000.00) FOR THE REPAIR OF THE COMMAND CENTER BUILDING AND ANOTHER FOUR MILLION PESOS (PHP 4,000,000.00) FOR THE REHABILITATION OF THE CCTV CAMERAS OF THE CITY.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of an indorsement from the City Mayor, re: City Disaster Risk Reduction and Management Council Resolution No. 4, Series of 2023, “A Resolution Approving and Endorsing to the Sangguniang Panlungsod for Adoption the Realignment of Rehabilitation of CDRRMO Warehouse with an amount of Eight Million Pesos (P8,000,000.00) to Repair of Command Center Building with an amount of Four Million Pesos (P4,000,000.00) and rehabilitation of the CCTV cameras of the city, also in the amount of Four Million Pesos (Php 4,000,000.00)”;

WHEREAS, NDRRMC-DBM-DILG JMC No. 2013-1 on its Policies and Procedures on the Utilization of LDRRMF paragraph 6.4 states that unexpended LDRRMF shall accrue to a special trust fund solely for the purpose of supporting disaster risk reduction and management activities of the Local Disaster Risk Reduction Management Council (LDRRMC) within the next five (5) years;

WHEREAS, it is also stated on NDRRMC-DBM-DILG JMC No. 2013-1 on its Policies and Procedures on the Utilization of I DRRMF paragraph 6 5 that unexpended LDRRMF may be released and utilized for new expenditure items upon submission of a Revised AIP as approved by Local Sanggunian and Local Chief Executive (LCE) upon

recommendation of the Local Disaster Risk Reduction Management Council (LDRRMC) in accordance with the approved LDRRMP;

WHEREAS, the Resolution of the City Disaster Risk Reduction and Management Council or CDRRMC seeks to realign the amount of Eight Million Pesos (Php 8,000,000.00) originally appropriated for the rehabilitation of the CDRRMC warehouse to repair the command center building in the amount of Four Million Pesos (Php 4,000,000.00) and rehabilitation of the CCTV cameras of the city, also in the amount of Four Million Pesos (Php 4,000,000.00);

WHEREAS, the Committee on Appropriation finds the request to be reasonable and in order;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Jose Expeditus B. Bayana, seconded by Honorable Joel E. Tinio, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution approving the realignment of the amount of Eight Million Pesos (P8,000,000.00) from CDRRMO Warehouse to Four Million Pesos (Php 4,000,000.00) for the repair of the command center building and another Four Million Pesos (Php 4,000,000.00) for the rehabilitation of the CCTV cameras of the city.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Disaster Risk Reduction and Management Council, and all concerned for their information, guidance and appropriate action.

- - - - -

Councilor Azarcon is recognized.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Good afternoon and good afternoon to all the honorable members of this council. For the Committee on Rules, I have four matters to attend to, the first one, Mr. Chairman is the letter of the City Mayor, Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II, requesting for an authority for him to enter into a Contract of Service with one Atty. Joseph B. Nacario an outsource provider to be placed under, to be assigned under City Legal Office for the period of October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023 but before I will proceed with the findings, the action taken, and the recommendation of the Committee on Rules, Mr. Chairman.

May I move for the suspension of the rules to allow Atty. Joseph B. Nacario to be invited here inside the session hall so that should any member of this council wish to propound clarificatory questions as to the designation, the nature of his engagement, Mr. Chairman, in the City Legal Office. May I move for the suspension of the rules, Mr. Chairman.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

As requested, the rules are suspended. May we have here as our resource person, Atty. Joseph Nacario.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

May I proceed, Mr. Chairman.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

Go ahead.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

May it please the Honorable Council, Atty. Joseph B. Nacario, will you please introduce yourself to us so that we will know your person.

ATTY. JOSEPH B. NACARIO:

Yes, Sir. Mr. Chairman, Sir, again good afternoon to the distinguished members of this august body. I am Atty. Joseph Bonotan Nacario, a resident of Barangay Canlanipa. I was a recent graduate, I mean, passer of the 2022 bar examination and a product of the local law school that we have here in Surigao, the San Sebastian College Recoletos, Surigao City, Sir. I am 42 years old, married and I have three daughters, Sir.

Hon. Cacel R. Azarcon sought clarification regarding the nature of Atty. Nacario's role. Atty. Nacario explained that the Compliance Management Specialist ensures that proposed policies and actions align with existing national and local laws. Additionally, Hon. Azarcon inquired about the origin of the designation, expressing unfamiliarity with it in the context of the City of Surigao. Atty. Nacario stated that the Human Resource Officer of the City LGU introduced the title. The committee also talked about Atty. Nacario's monthly compensation of P35,000.00, the fixed duration of his engagement, and the potential renewal subject to the City Mayor's discretion.

Hon. Azarcon emphasized that the role of liaison was not initially outlined in the Contract of Service and should focus on the Compliance Management Specialist designation.

Councilor Joenil B. Aldonza later inquired about the middle name of Atty. Nacario's wife, Galido, and whether she was related to Atty. Galido. Atty. Nacario clarified that, while they shared a surname, no traceable relation existed, and his wife and Atty. Galido could not establish any familial connection.

Hon. Azarcon then questioned Atty. Nacario about his relationship with Atty. Galido, who recommended him for the City Government position. Atty. Nacario confirmed the recommendation but clarified that there was no familial relationship between them.

After addressing the questions, Atty. Nacario was excused from the session, and the committee proceeded to discuss its findings and recommendations based on the City Mayor's request and the terms outlined in Atty. Nacario's Contract of Service.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

We will reinstate the rules.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

May I proceed, Mr. Chairman?

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

You have the floor.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Considering further that the City Budget Office has already issued a certification to the effect that there is an available appropriation for the payment for his compensation in the amount of P35,000 per month, which will be taken from the current appropriation of the City Legal Office

in the total sum of ₱105,000.00. The request is therefor in order. The recommendation of the Committee on Rules hereby recommends for the passage of a resolution authorizing the City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II, to enter into a Contract of Service with one, Atty. Joseph B. Nacario, an outsource provider, to be placed under the City Legal Office for the period October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023.

I therefore move, Mr. Chairman for the adoption of my committee report.

The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

280

RESOLUTION NO. 280 - 2023

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MAYOR PABLO YVES L. DUMLAO II TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT OF SERVICE WITH ONE ATTY. JOSEPH B. NACARIO AS A COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT SPECIALIST, TO BE PLACED UNDER THE CITY LEGAL OFFICE FOR THE PERIOD OCTOBER 1, 2023 TO DECEMBER 31, 2023.

WHEREAS, indorsed to the Sangguniang Panlungsod is the letter from the City Mayor, requesting for an authority for him to enter into Contract of Service with Atty. Joseph B. Nacario as Compliance Management Specialist in the Office of the City Legal Office, for the period October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023;

WHEREAS, pursuant to CSC En Banc Resolution 93-4154 dated September 23, 1993, a jurisprudence that clearly states Contractual Personnel are HIRED to undertake specific job or work requiring special or technical skills not available in the employing agency to be accomplished within a specific period;

WHEREAS, the committee finds the request to be in the exigency of public service, as the services are necessary to enhance the capacity of the City Legal Office in ensuring the efficiency of the city government in legal research, policy administration, and implementation;

WHEREAS, the City Budget Office has already issued a certification to the effect that there is an available appropriation for the payment of their compensation in the amount of Thirty-Five Thousand Pesos (P35,000.00) per month, which will be taken from the current appropriation of the City Legal Office in the total sum of One Hundred Five Thousand Pesos (P105,000.00);

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Caceres R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Joseph Joey S. Yuipco, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution authorizing the City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II to enter into a Contract of Service with one Atty. Joseph B. Nacario as a Compliance Management Specialist, to be placed under the City Legal Office for the period October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023.

RESOLVED FURTHER: Let copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, Human Resource Management and Development Office (HRMDO), Civil Service Commission (CSC) and all concerned for their information, guidance and appropriate action.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Next, Mr. Chairman.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Go ahead.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Is the request of the City Development Council for the adoption and approval of the following resolutions, to wit:

- 1. CDC Resolution No. 2, Series of 2023 – Approving the Development Vision of the City: “With the Blessings of the Divine Providence, Surigao City in 2040: A Smart City of Resilient People, Enjoying a Healthy and Pleasant Environment, Driven by a Progressive, Competitive, Sustainable Economy and Guided by a Transparent Accountable Governance”;*

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

The spelling here of divine is “di” ha. You make that correction.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Make the necessary clerical correction, Madame Secretary. Including the sustainable.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Next.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

- 2. CDC Resolution No. 5, Series of 2023 – Approving and Endorsing the Proposed Port Zone Delineation (PZD) of the PPA-PMO at the Sangguniang Panlungsod and Provincial Development Council for Adoption;*
- 3. CDC Resolution No. 8, Series of 2023 – Approving and Favorably Endorsing the City Government’s Intent/Application with PPA for the Turn-Over of the Management and Operations of the old PACEMCO Port;*

The findings and action taken by the committee, Mr. Chairman, after the review and deliberations by the Committee on Rules, it was established that the aforesaid resolutions have already undergone extensive review, workshops and discussions from the City Development Council. There is nothing left to be done by the committee but to approve the same and endorse to the Sangguniang Panlalawigan and the Provincial Development Council for its adoption and approval. The said resolutions are needed by the City Government to further the economic development of the city. The Committee on Rules hereby recommends for the passage of a resolution approving the aforesaid resolutions and endorsing the same to the Sangguniang Panlalawigan and the Provincial Development Council for their adoption and approval.

May I therefore respectfully move, Mr. Chairman for the adoption of my committee report.

The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

RESOLUTION NO. 281 - 2023

281

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CDC RESOLUTION NO. 2, CDC RESOLUTION NO. 5, AND CDC RESOLUTION NO. 8, ALL SERIES OF 2023, AND ENDORSING THE SAME TO THE SANGGUNIAN PANLALAWIGAN AND PROVINCIAL DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL FOR THEIR ADOPTION AND APPROVAL.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of an indorsement from the City Mayor, forwarding to the City Council the resolutions of the City Development Council, to wit:

1. CDC Resolution No. 2, Series of 2023, “Approving the Development Vision of the City: “With the Blessings of the Divine Providence, Surigao City in 2040: A Smart City of Resilient People, Enjoying a Healthy and Pleasant Environment, Driven by a Progressive, Competitive, Sustainable Economy and Guided by a Transparent Accountable Governance”;
2. CDC Resolutions No. 5, Series of 2023, “Approving and Endorsing the Proposed Port Zone Delineation (PZD) of the PPA-PMO to the Sangguniang Panlungsod and Provincial Development Council for Adoption”;
3. CDC Resolution No. 8, Series of 2023, “Approving and Favorably Endorsing the City Government’s Intent/Application with PPA for the Turn-Over of the Management and Operations of the old PACEMCO Port”, favorable action and approval;

WHEREAS, after review and deliberations by the Committee on Rules, it has been established that the aforementioned resolutions have already undergone extensive review, workshops, and discussions from the City Development Council;

WHEREAS, said resolutions are deemed necessary by the city government to further the economic development of the city.

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Caceres R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Joseph Joseph S. Yuipco, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution approving CDC Resolution No. 2, CDC Resolution No. 5, and CDC Resolution No. 8, all Series of 2023, and endorsing the same to the Sangguniang Panlalawigan and Provincial Development Council for their adoption and approval.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Development Council, Sangguniang Panlalawigan, Provincial Development Council and all concerned for their information, guidance and appropriate action.

- - - - -

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Thank you. Next, Mr. Chairman is the letter request of the City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II for review of Resolution No. 75 – 1997, a resolution authorizing the City Mayor to donate portion of the city’s property along the boulevard with an area of not more than 200 square meters in favor of the Surigaonon Heritage Center as site for the proposed Surigao City Museum and Research Center. During our committee hearing, Mr. Chairman, I found out that it was you who passed this resolution.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

No, it was referred to you.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Yes but I’m referring to Resolution No. 75 – 1997, you were a City Councilor at that time.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Yes.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

But anyway, that is beside the report, Mr. Chairman because this 200 square meters now which the Surigao City Museum is being erected is facing a controversy, Mr. Chairman. And with that, the City Legal Officer, Atty. Silvosa, requested the committee for sufficient time to investigate further over the matter because this involves a legal action, later on. So therefore, we agreed that the matter will be remanded back to his office for his review and...

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

City Legal?

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

City Legal Office, so that he can have sufficient time to review and investigate and gather documentary evidences to support his position. So, may I move for the adoption of this report, Mr. Chairman.

The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

RESOLUTION NO. 282 - 2023

A RESOLUTION REMANDING THE REQUEST OF THE HONORABLE CITY MAYOR PABLO YVES L. DUMLAO II FOR REVIEW OF RESOLUTION NO. 75 – 1997 TO THE CITY LEGAL OFFICE FOR FURTHER REVIEW AND INVESTIGATION.

WHEREAS, indorsed to Sangguniang Panlungsod is the letter of the City Mayor, requesting the City Council to review the Resolution No.75-1997, A resolution authorizing the City Mayor to donate a portion of the city's property along the boulevard with an area of not more than two hundred square meters (200 sq.m.) in favor of the Surigaonon Heritage Center as site for the proposed Surigao City Museum and Research Center on a usufruct basis only which is allegedly being sold by a private person contrary to its use as Surigao City Museum and Research Center;

WHEREAS, the Committee on Rules and the City Legal office agreed to remand the subject matter to its office for further review and investigation;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Cacer R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Sebastian Ric A. Nagas, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution remanding the request of the Honorable City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II for review of Resolution No. 75 – 1997 to the City Legal Office for further review and investigation.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Legal Office and all concerned for their information, guidance and appropriate action.

- - - - -

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Last Mr. Chairman, is the...is Barangay Ordinance 01 Series of 2023 of Barangay Washington entitled an Ordinance naming the Streets in Kaskag Village, Barangay Washington City of Surigao in honor and in memory of the late Brgy. Captain Tereso O. Ave and Adriano F. Laxa. Ah during the Committee Hearing Mr. Chairman and also as provided under the Local Government Code, it's only the Sanggunian Panlungsod who has the power, power to name Brgy. Road in the name of any person Mr. Chairman. So therefore, I advised the Brgy. Council of Brgy. Washington to review and make a refinement on the Brgy. Ordinance that they submitted before us.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

So, we will remand this back to the?

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

Yes, Washington.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

Brgy. Council of Washington.

HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:

So we agreed that the Brgy. Ordinance No. 01 Series of 2023 be remanded back to the Brgy. Council of Brgy. Washington for further review and refinement. May I therefore move for the adoption of this Committee Report Mr. Chairman?

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

1013 *There is now a motion. Is there any second?*

1014 **HON. JOEL E. TINIO/SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS:**

1015 *Second.*

1016

1017 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1018

1019 *Duly seconded that we remand Brgy. Ordinance No. 01 Series of 2023 back to the*
 1020 *Brgy. Council of Brgy. Washington for further review and refinement. Is there any second*
 1021 *to the motion?*

1022

1023 **HON. JOEL E. TINIO/SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS:**

1024

1025 *Second.*

1026

1027 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1028

1029 *Discussion?*

1030

1031 During the discussion Hon. Baltazar C. Abian raised a query about the requirements
 1032 for naming a street. Hon. Cacer R. Azarcon explained that it involves seeking the opinion
 1033 of the National Historical Commission and the Sanggunian Panlungsod for component
 1034 cities. The issue at hand is a Barangay Ordinance already passed, naming two streets after
 1035 deceased individuals. The conversation continued on whether City Councilors can have
 1036 streets named after them, with the response being that it's not possible while they are alive.
 1037 The potential of reserving a street name in advance is explored, with the requirement to
 1038 follow the Local Government Code. Hon. Cacer R. Azarcon suggested creating an
 1039 ordinance if someone wishes to name a street after themselves.

1040 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1041

1042 *Is there any objection? Hearing none. The motion to remand the Ordinance to Brgy.*
 1043 *Washington back to Brgy. Washington is hereby adopted. Formal motion to Resolution.*

1044

1045 **HON. CACEL R. AZARCON:**

1046

1047 *May I therefore respectfully move Mr. Chairman for the passage of a Resolution*
 1048 *remanding back Barangay Ordinance No.01 Series of 2023 of Barangay Washington to its*
 1049 *Barangay Council for further review and refinement. I so move, Mr. Chairman.*

1050

1051 The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was
 1052 presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

1053

1054

1055

RESOLUTION NO. 283 - 2023

1056

1057

1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of an indorsement from
 the City Mayor, forwarding Barangay Ordinance No. 01, Series of 2023 of Barangay
 Washington, entitled "An Ordinance Naming the Streets in Kaskag Village,

Barangay Washington, City of Surigao, in Honor and Memory of the Late Barangay Captains Tereso O. Ave and Adriano F. Laxa.”;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 57 of the Local Government Code, Barangay Ordinances shall be furnished within ten (10) days after its enactment to the Sangguniang Panlungsod for review to determine as to whether the ordinance is consistent with the law; it is further provided that if the Sangguniang Panlungsod finds the barangay ordinance inconsistent with law, the Sangguniang concerned shall, within thirty (30) days from the receipt thereof, return the same with its comments and recommendations to the Barangay concerned for adjustment, amendment or modification;

WHEREAS, the Committee on Rules and the barangay officials of Barangay Washington, Surigao City agreed to remand the said Barangay Ordinance to the Barangay Council for further review and refinement;

NOW THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Cacer R. Azarcon, seconded by Honorable Baltazar C. Abian, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution remanding Barangay Ordinance No. 01, Series of 2023 of Barangay Washington back to its Barangay Council for further review and refinement.

RESOLVED FURTHER: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, City Legal Office and all concerned for their information, guidance and appropriate action.

- - - - -

Councilor Abian was recognized.

HON. BALTAZAR C. ABIAN:

Ok. Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and to my Colleagues. As a Chairman of Committee on Transportation and respectfully indorsed to the Tricycle and Trisikad Franchising Office the TTFO Committee through the Chairman City Vice- Mayor Hon. Alfonso S. Casurra, herein the 170 applications for new applicants of Bao-Bao for hire franchises which will be operating within the Arellano District of Surigao and 149 applications for the tricycle franchise classified as renewal and amendment of franchise, and were able to comply the requirements set forth under Ordinance No. 477 Series of 2023. The Committee recommends for the adoption of the Committee Report. So, I move Mr. Chair.

The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

RESOLUTION NO. 284-2023

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 170 NEW APPLICATIONS FOR BAO-BAO FOR-HIRE FRANCHISES WHICH WILL BE OPERATING WITHIN ARELLANO DISTRICT OF SURIGAO AND 149 APPLICATIONS FOR THE TRICYCLE FRANCHISE CLASSIFIED AS RENEWAL, RENEWAL/AMENDMENT OF FRANCHISE AND AMENDMENT OF FRANCHISE

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of indorsement from Tricycle Trisikad Franchising Office, endorsing 170 New applications for Bao-Bao for-hire franchises which will be operating within Arellano District of Surigao and 149 applications for the tricycle franchise classified as renewal and amendment of franchise;

WHEREAS, during the committee hearing conducted on November 13, 2023, the TTFO committee acted on the 170 new applications for Bao-Bao and 149 applications for the tricycle franchise, classified as Renewal, Renewal/Amendment of Franchise and Amendment of Franchise, with complete supporting documents and the corresponding Certificate of Road Worthiness, giving favorable action to the said applications;

NOW, THEREFORE, on motion of Honorable Baltazar C. Abian seconded by Honorable Karl Duane A. Casurra, it was

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution approving the 170 New applications for Bao-Bao for-hire franchises which will be operating within Arellano District of Surigao and 149 applications for the tricycle franchise classified as Renewal, Renewal/Amendment of Franchise and Amendment of Franchise, to wit:

170 NEW APPLICATIONS FOR BAO-BAO

No.	Name	SC#	Plate No.	MV File No.	Remarks
1.	ENOT, WENDEL R.	D-0001	134ZJD		New Applicant
2.	CERVANTES, RANDY C.	D-0002		1501-305852	New Applicant
3.	RINCONADA, ELENA B.	D-0003	723ZTA		New Applicant
4.	BUENO, NICK P.	D-0004		1501-272000	New Applicant
5.	TRONGCO, RICK T.	D-0005	794ZMB		New Applicant
6.	ESCRUPOLO, JESSIE P.	D-0006		1501-342324	New Applicant
7.	SILOS, ARCHIE M.	D-0007	434ZCX		New Applicant
8.	DANDOY, RENATO G.	D-0008	498ZLA		New Applicant
9.	JARDENIL, JAYA MARIE F.	D-0009	378ZLA		New Applicant
10.	BARAHAN, JOEL G.	D-0010	645ZMD		New Applicant
11.	MAGBAGO, ROMEO C.	D-0011	353ZLH		New Applicant
12.	LIGAD, EMIE M.	D-0012		1501-326752	New Applicant
13.	DILAG, HERMIE ADRIAN B.	D-0013		1501-339166	New Applicant
14.	TOLDO, CHRISTIAN D.	D-0014		1501-326936	New Applicant
15.	GANADE, JENEVEN L.	D-0015	904ZGG		New Applicant
16.	PUNAY JR., FRANCISCO I.	D-0016	631ZMA		New Applicant
17.	DAMACINO, ARMANDO V.	D-0017	530ZIN		New Applicant
18.	ENOT, RODEL R.	D-0018	139ZJD		New Applicant
19.	ALPAJANDO, SAMUEL C.	D-0019		1501-337771	New Applicant
20.	SAMOYA, JESSRYL M.	D-0020		1501-315670	New Applicant
21.	SAGA, ROBERT T.	D-0021		1501-2441279	New Applicant
22.	SECLON, BERNARDO L.	D-0022		1501-293226	New Applicant
23.	CANTILLAS, JOSEPITO L.	D-0023		1501-337774	New Applicant
24.	ARMADA, MICHAEL C.	D-0024	884ZLA		New Applicant
25.	GABITANO, MARIO B.	D-0025			New Applicant
26.	ELMOSORA, PHILIP P.	D-0026		1501-331266	New Applicant
27.	TOLEDO, APPLE D.	D-0027	307ZKJ		New Applicant
28.	AZARCON, ZYRIX D.	D-0028	908ZGL		New Applicant
29.	AZON, ELIAS C.	D-0029	507ZIN		New Applicant
30.	TOLDO, RICHARD D.	D-0030	261ZML		New Applicant
31.	ARMADA, ALEXANDER C.	D-0031	883ZLA		New Applicant
32.	TABILE, MADY E.	D-0032	816ZKZ		New Applicant
33.	JUNTILO, CRISTOPHER A.	D-0033			New Applicant
34.	ABELLANA, RONEL R.	D-0034	267ZLQ		New Applicant
35.	GEONGO, LUCENA C.	D-0035	423ZKU		New Applicant
36.	SUKO, MASATO E.	D-0036	824ZLM		New Applicant

37.	AMIHAN, JOHN MARK A.	D-0037		1501-337776	New Applicant
38.	FERNANDEZ, RAYMOND E.	D-0038	390ZQL		New Applicant
39.	ALIPAO, NOEL R.	D-0039	879ZKA		New Applicant
40.	ALCISO, RONALD R.	D-0040		1501-331260	New Applicant
41.	ARCO, ROBINSON M.	D-0041	338ZIB		New Applicant
42.	ESCRUPOLO, FRANCISCO JR M.	D-0042		1501-295599	New Applicant
43.	MERCADO, CHERLITO JR C.	D-0043	374ZLX		New Applicant
44.	BELARMINO, GLENO V.	D-0044		1501-337782	New Applicant
45.	DELAMIDE, PEDRO E.	D-0045		1501-331279	New Applicant
46.	LIGAD, ROLANDO C.	D-0046	480ZIL		New Applicant
47.	DEQUIT, CHARLITO D.	D-0047	420ZCX		New Applicant
48.	ACLO, RITCHIE J.	D-0048		1501-294680	New Applicant
49.	SILA, EDEMYR I.	D-0049		1501-326953	New Applicant
50.	TESADO, JULIETA T.	D-0050	922ZIX		New Applicant
51.	JAMERO, WILLY JR G.	D-0051	570ZPU		New Applicant
52.	ABULOG, WILLEBETH M.	D-0052	269ZKX		New Applicant
53.	CRUZ, DANTE B.	D-0053		1501-289784	New Applicant
54.	BERNEROS, HARRY F.	D-0054		1501-307658	New Applicant
55.	SAGA-AD, RONALD E.	D-0055		1501-289534	New Applicant
56.	JARIL, JOJO U.	D-0056		1501-321785	New Applicant
57.	BARCOS, ARIEL E.	D-0057	440ZKU		New Applicant
58.	GAMBOA, SOFIO T.	D-0058	908ZKW		New Applicant
59.	ABAO, JERRY B.	D-0059	650ZLW		New Applicant
60.	CLARO, JULITO A.	D-0060	872ZKA		New Applicant
61.	MINGUITA, JOSEPH E.	D-0061	273ZKO		New Applicant
62.	PALOMA, MARY ROSE Q.	D-0062	620ZQF		New Applicant
63.	OMAC, GILBERT T.	D-0063		1501-335686	New Applicant
64.	DAWSAN, JULYUS C.	D-0064	751ZGN		New Applicant
65.	BARCOS, RANDY D.	D-0065	655ZLW		New Applicant
66.	SANTILLAN, JENIVER L.	D-0066	808ZLL		New Applicant
67.	BAGAYAS, CHRISTIAN P.	D-0067			New Applicant
68.	BARCOS, ELEUTERIO O.	D-0068	779ZPY		New Applicant
69.	PAGAY, ROLLY B.	D-0069	406ZMH		New Applicant
70.	SOLIS, EDGARDO N.	D-0070	877ZKA		New Applicant
71.	DIANING, AGUSTIN JR A.	D-0071		1501-241150	New Applicant
72.	ESPANCHO, JOSIE B.	D-0072	909ZFX		New Applicant
73.	CAVITE, FELIPE B.	D-0073			New Applicant
74.	MADRONA, JOSEPHINE E.	D-0074	313ZKX		New Applicant
75.	CATARMAN, JUNARD G.	D-0075	919ZKZ		New Applicant
76.	CABRERA, EDWIN E.	D-0076	384ZQC		New Applicant
77.	FEROL, EVE P.	D-0077		1501-295598	New Applicant
78.	SEBIAL, DANIELO B.	D-0078	519ZKL		New Applicant
79.	MELO, MARK ZENON M.	D-0079	115ZJD		New Applicant
80.	ZARAGOZA, PAUL DIME I.	D-0080			New Applicant
81.	ZARAGOZA, ROBELITO S.	D-0081	846ZGH		New Applicant
82.	PAEL, LARRY M.	D-0082			New Applicant
83.	MELO, AVEGAIL KRISTINE B.	D-0083	625ZLF		New Applicant
84.	RESULLAR, CRISTUTO L.	D-0084	764ZKC		New Applicant
85.	SOLIS, JUNRIEL C.	D-0085		1501-289744	New Applicant
86.	DELGADO, JUNREY C	D-0086	295ZKB		New Applicant
87.	CASTONES, PAZ T.	D-0087	314ZLF		New Applicant
88.	AMIHAN, SIMFORIANO R.	D-0088		1501-297190	New Applicant
89.	MACACUNA, JUNAID Z.	D-0089	527ZIV		New Applicant
90.	EDER, RONNIL B.	D-0090	987ZIA		New Applicant
91.	ABINES, ROIE JOHN N.	D-0091	912ZQF		New Applicant
92.	PARONIA, ARCHIEVAL BRYAN	D-0092		1501-306610	New Applicant

93.	CONALES, ARSOLIN C.	D-0093	506ZLH		New Applicant
94.	SILVOSA, CRISTOPER R.	D-0094	239ZIW		New Applicant
95.	SATURINAS, RUINA A.	D-0095	301ZLQ		New Applicant
96.	CANTILLAS, LIZA E.	D-0096	166ZCZ		New Applicant
97.	PAULAR, JERRY P.	D-0097	860ZLL		New Applicant
98.	VILLAR, JOEL G.	D-0098		1501-297171	New Applicant
99.	DAGANTE, JEMAR J.	D-0099	802ZLW		New Applicant
100.	MADULA, JESON B.	D-0100	743ZGN		New Applicant
101.	PERDIZO, EMMANUEL E.	D-0101	522ZJD		New Applicant
102.	ENORME, RAUL N.	D-0102	532ZLM		New Applicant
103.	CASUNDO, CHERY P.	D-0103		1501-274660	New Applicant
104.	CUARTEROS JR., RICARDO T.	D-0104	498ZIN		New Applicant
105.	QUICO, BEBERLY V.	D-0105		1501-289889	New Applicant
106.	ESCRUPOLO, ROWENA R.	D-0106	296ZLF		New Applicant
107.	PELIGRINO, FLORDICAN B.	D-0107	325ZGJ		New Applicant
108.	PANTILO, NIDA D.	D-0108	969ZQE		New Applicant
109.	PATRIARCA, DANILO P.	D-0109	796ZLL		New Applicant
110.	DUROCA, EDUARDO B.	D-0110		1501-315504	New Applicant
111.	ALANO, EFREN E.	D-0111	314ZLX		New Applicant
112.	HILARIO, RHIVIC D.	D-0112	490ZLR		New Applicant
113.	BERAGSANG, ROSELITO A.	D-0113	762ZKC		New Applicant
114.	ECONAR, LOVELY P.	D-0114		1501-315496	New Applicant
115.	ABULENCIA, RONNIE P.	D-0115	741LOR		New Applicant
116.	VALLES, JANET P.	D-0116			New Applicant
117.	CELESTE, LITO A.	D-0117			New Applicant
118.	CIRUELA, DOMINGO A.	D-0118		1501-295595	New Applicant
119.	EDRADAN, FLORENCIA B.	D-0119			New Applicant
120.	ABAJA, MICHAEL D.	D-0120	266ZLO		New Applicant
121.	JAPAY, GORGONIO JR T.	D-0121		1501-283910	New Applicant
122.	YEPIS, IBONIE G.	D-0122		1501-184247	New Applicant
123.	ORBOC, CHARLITO D.	D-0123	853ZPY		New Applicant
124.	MAPAIT, ROY D.	D-0124	478ZLH		New Applicant
125.	VALLESPIN, ALMA A.	D-0125		1501-295597	New Applicant
126.	AZARES, KENNETH C.	D-0126	363ZTJ		New Applicant
127.	LINGCOPENES, ANDERSON B.	D-0127		1501-273721	New Applicant
128.	RINCONADA, RENEBOY C.	D-0128	638ZLW		New Applicant
129.	CLOR, DINA M.	D-0129		1501-153199	New Applicant
130.	BALICOG, JOSUE E.	D-0130	242ZMF		New Applicant
131.	BOLANDRINA, ROLLY C.	D-0131		1501-289891	New Applicant
132.	PERANTE, MARK STEVEN B.	D-0132	172ZCZ		New Applicant
133.	BERNARDINO, ALBERTO B.	D-0133		1501-241625	New Applicant
134.	OPON, NIEL N.	D-0134	649ZMD		New Applicant
135.	CASERA, ALDEN C.	D-0135			New Applicant
136.	NIER, EMMANUEL S.	D-0136	366ZTJ		New Applicant
137.	PEGAREZ, DAVE E.	D-0137			New Applicant
138.	CUATON, REMEDIOS A.	D-0138			New Applicant
139.	EDER, LOT E.	D-0139		1501-323545	New Applicant
140.	YLANA, ARCHIE O.	D-0140		0920-1001280	New Applicant
141.	CABAJES, DIOSDADA U.	D-0141		1501-317774	New Applicant
142.	DALUZ, REYNALDO S.	D-0142	650ZMD		New Applicant
143.	MARQUEZO, NOEL L.	D-0143		1501-337773	New Applicant
144.	BONILLA, ALVIN ANDRE G.	D-0144			New Applicant
145.	CATUBIGAN, ZEUS KIM A.	D-0145	601ZIR		New Applicant
146.	QUIREZ, GILBERT D.	D-0146			New Applicant
147.	CUASITO, ALMA P.	D-0147			New Applicant
148.	ROJO, JOSEPH C.	D-0148	374ZGD		New Applicant

149.	LERAN JR., ROMEO B.	D-0149		1501-335687	New Applicant
150.	CONDAT SR., ARNEL S.	D-0150	901ZJD		New Applicant
151.	CATUBIGAN, JOEL T.	D-0151		1501-289681	New Applicant
152.	ROJO, MARLITA R.	D-0152	583ZKL		New Applicant
153.	PEDARSE, JIMMY P.	D-0153	583ZTA		New Applicant
154.	VILLA, JOSHUA P.	D-0154	241ZQC		New Applicant
155.	ARGUELLES, RIC A.	D-0155	847ZLL		New Applicant
156.	ROJO, JONATHAN C.	D-0156			New Applicant
157.	TORRES, EMERSON M.	D-0157			New Applicant
158.	GIENTE, ROSAURO P.	D-0158	282ZKM		New Applicant
159.	ENSO, MARCELO B.	D-0159	798ZKZ		New Applicant
160.	RIVERO, AMIER E.	D-0160			New Applicant
161.	DOLE, ROLAN L.	D-0161			New Applicant
162.	CLOR, JESTONIE R.	D-0162		1501-304728	New Applicant
163.	VILLACENCIO, BRYAN A.	D-0163			New Applicant
164.	MACAPINDIG, JEMAR	D-0164			New Applicant
165.	TORREGOZA, EDNA	D-0165		1501-297279	New Applicant
166.	PASIGNA, ROLLY E.	D-0166	280KCZ		New Applicant
167.	CASTRO, ALAN	D-0167			New Applicant
168.	BESINGA, MERLINA E.	D-0168	467ZLI		New Applicant
169.	CEDRO JR., LUISITO J.	D-0169			New Applicant
170.	CABABAO, ERVIN L	D-0170			New Applicant

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

**149 APPLICATIONS FOR THE TRICYCLE FRANCHISE, CLASSIFIED AS
RENEWAL, RENEWAL/AMENDMENT OF FRANCHISE AND AMENDMENT
OF FRANCHISE**

No.	Name	SC#	TTFO #	Plate No.	MV File No.	Remarks
1.	CACAO, AURECIO R.	0037	2020-0932	LU4754		Renewal
2.	BALATERO, JOSUE E.	0078	2021-0002	XR3401		Renewal
3.	BAYOGBOG, PACITA M.	0079	2021-0003	2219LU		Renewal
4.	LEOPARDAS, RAFAELA B.	0140	2021-0008	LU6695		Renewal
5.	DAPO, JESUS A.	0158	2020-0934	7840LU		Renewal
6.	REYES, AQUINO M.	0212	2020-0937		1501-44652	Renewal
7.	EMPLEO, RUBEN S.	0258	2021-0016		1501-241561	Renewal
8.	ALIPAO, FERNANDO F.	0299	2020-0946		1501-184791	Renewal
9.	SILLADORA, JIMMY E.	0315	2022-0219	521ZIC		Renewal
10.	PALIN, DANIEL L.	0352	2021-1054		1501-53392	Renewal
11.	GALUPO, JHO ANN E.	0361	2020-0950		1501-206685	Renewal
12.	RIVAS, JEOFFREY P.	0368	2021-0801	1215LU		Renewal
13.	OPLANIA, FRANKLIN B.	0393	22-0949	918ZIO		Renewal
14.	POCOT, VIRGENIA L.	0413	2021-0028		1501-33290	Renewal
15.	GOLLOSO, CRISTY C.	0440	2021-0029		1501-276434	Renewal
16.	ALFECHÉ, JOVIE V.	0489	2021-0034		1508-90276	Renewal
17.	BONILLA, BLAS E.	0513	2021-0035		1501-65472	Renewal
18.	BUIZA, TERESITO G.	0577	2020-0960	2973LU		Renewal
19.	BIOL, BEBOT C.	0592	2020-0961	7900LU		Renewal
20.	CAVITE, CHARLITO JR M.	0593	2021-0037		1520-69200	Renewal
21.	GALISA, HERMIE M.	0632	2021-0491		1501-153633	Renewal
22.	PABELONIA, ROLAN N.	0640	2021-0040		1501-37585	Renewal
23.	PABELONIA, RODEL N.	0687	2021-0045		1524-52238	Renewal
24.	CANDILAS, JONATHAN F.	0712	23-0602	LU8932		Renewal
25.	CORBETA, ANECITA E.	0740	2021-0049	XR3448		Renewal

26.	BASTASA, RANGIE A.	0791	2021-0052		1501-197145	Renewal
27.	BITACURA, JOEL M.	0799	2020-0640		1501-169549	Renewal
28.	AGUIMAN, JUPITER P.	0812	2021-1587		1508-87692	Renewal
29.	PACILAN, ARCHIE F.	0816	2021-1428		1501-330264	Renewal
30.	BAYHON II, PAULINO G.	0994	23-1292		1501-37323	Renewal
31.	CRUZ, PROCESA S.	1050	2021-0068	5075LU		Renewal
32.	ODE, JO-AN R.	1060	2021-0069	XR2548		Renewal
33.	DARUCA, EDISON G.	1139	2021-0531	LU8972		Renewal
34.	MESIAS, ADRIANITA R.	1170	2020-0982		1501-223095	Renewal
35.	ESCOL, ROSALIA C.	1175	2021-0533	1527LU		Renewal
36.	COSINERO, SUSAN C.	1197	2021-0535		1501-45853	Renewal
37.	ETAC, ARMANDO H.	1195	2021-0074	MS15661		Renewal
38.	LINEJAN, ROMAN ROMEO B.	1232	2021-0538	MS27802		Renewal
39.	DEGRAN SR., ROLDAN M.	1244	22-0666		1501-231626	Renewal
40.	LUCHAVEZ, LEINEDETH T.	1301	2020-0444		1501-209211	Renewal
41.	SALVACION, JELIAN B.	1376	2021-1063	5197LU		Renewal
42.	LAGUNDA, GREGORIO G.	1401	2020-0877		1501-147113	Renewal
43.	FLORES, GEREMIAS B.	1426	2021-0086		1501-67644	Renewal
44.	MAGISTRADO, SHIRLEY M.	1497	2021-0090	9787LU		Renewal
45.	TORRES, WELLFRIDO B.	1632	23-0939	618ZLV		Renewal
46.	MOZAR, ROGER N.	1675	2021-0099	LU4628		Renewal
47.	ANTOLIN, ROMELITO L.	1701	2021-0104	MS64022		Renewal
48.	TINAMBACAN, DESIDERIO S.	1763	2020-1007	9838LU		Renewal
49.	MAL-ANG, WILSON T.	1782	2021-1181		1501-99235	Renewal
50.	ADLAWAN, ANTONIO F.	1783	2021-1182		1501-250236	Renewal
51.	LIBRES, JERRYME B.	1864	2021-0576		1501-147539	Renewal
52.	BORJA, JELBERT B.	2026	22-0688		1101-823486	Renewal
53.	SAJOR, CRISPINIANO JR S.	2033	2021-1077		1501-121836	Renewal
54.	DELA CRUZ, JULIUS O.	2195	23-1386	733ZMC		Renewal
55.	LAMOSTE, ARCHEL PAUL	2233	22-0932		1501-61569	Renewal
56.	PACOT, RAMIL T.	2253	2021-0597	5055LU		Renewal
57.	MANIEGO, MARIETTA E.	2289	2020-1027		1501-205269	Renewal
58.	MANGALIMAN, MARMAN M.	2291	2021-0598	5017LU		Renewal
59.	LISONDRA, LITO JR E.	2469	2020-0911		1501-187278	Renewal
60.	TUMAMPOS, RONALD L.	2546	2021-0140	7973LU		Renewal
61.	ASILUM, IMELDA G.	2605	2021-0143	LU4985		Renewal
62.	SERRATO, MICHAEL T.	2606	2021-1235		1501-249433	Renewal
63.	ALCESO, JUANILLO E.	2640	2021-0618		1501-65390	Renewal
64.	MORALES, MAXIMO JR. M.	2662	2021-0152		1520-71188	Renewal
65.	ZABALA, DIONISIO JR. G	2665	2021-0153		1508-98933	Renewal
66.	CARDEÑO, GENARO C.	2682	23-0253	782ZKA		Renewal
67.	SULAPAS, ANTHONY L.	2755	2020-1035		1501-274909	Renewal
68.	PINADOS, AGA D.	2863	2021-0198		1501-275368	Renewal
69.	MERGULLAS, ELVES C.	2689	2021-0165		1508-85986	Renewal
70.	LUCIDO, GERALDIN O.	2926	2021-0717		1501-131826	Renewal
71.	PASAGAD, FELOMINO S.	2975	2021-0210		1501-71178	Renewal
72.	CRUZADO, SULPICIA B.	3089	2020-0758	5059LU		Renewal
73.	COSINERO, REYVEL L.	3196	2021-0232		1501-184771	Renewal
74.	CALAPEZ, VIRNIE BOY B.	3203	2021-0239	XR5165		Renewal
75.	CABANA, ALLYN S.	3208	22-0940		1501-270350	Renewal
76.	TAGHAP, RICHY C.	3210	2021-1549		1501-29276	Renewal
77.	CALIPAY, JAY A.	3214	2021-0250		1501-88439	Renewal
78.	MAGBAGO, AMALIA L.	3216	2021-0252		1508-81731	Renewal
79.	EGUNA, MELANIO M.	3217	2021-0253		1520-36939	Renewal
80.	LANGUEZ, JAY A.	3221	2021-0257		1501-207120	Renewal
81.	CASURRA, CELSO JR A.	3229	2021-1133		1501-281301	Renewal

82.	MAGNO, FERDINAND B.	3231	2021-0267		1501-166286	Renewal
83.	PENADOS, MERCEDITO S.	3234	2021-0270		1501-258139	Renewal
84.	LAGURA, DINDO G.	3242	2021-0278	MS85053		Renewal
85.	BARRIGA, EDGARDO C.	3243	2021-0279	4949LU		Renewal
86.	AMOLADOR, CHANNY B.	3249	22-0941	769ZIB		Renewal
87.	PORTUGALIZA, KEM IAN C.	3255	2021-0290		1501-83342	Renewal
88.	LOOD, ERLINDA R.	3258	2021-0293	1817LU		Renewal
89.	BORJA, BIENVENIDO JR C.	3262	23-0598		1501-219775	Renewal
90.	CALUBAG, ROLANDO B.	3271	2021-0304		1508-91431	Renewal
91.	SACOTE, ROWENA S.	3273	2021-0306		1501-17600	Renewal
92.	PONGCOL, JUNETO M.	3275	23-0625	651ZGJ		Renewal
93.	PALACIO, LEOMAR F.	3277	2021-0309	961ZAZ		Renewal
94.	BENLOT, JERRY SR.	3279	2021-0311		1508-97989	Renewal
95.	ENOT, MICHAEL VER C.	3282	2021-0314		1501-105603	Renewal
96.	ESCOL, ROSALIA C.	3298	2021-1422		1501-335449	Renewal
97.	CANTILLAS, LIZA E.	3303	2021-0330	MS25963		Renewal
98.	DELA SIERRA, JAIME T.	3305	2021-0332		1520-48346	Renewal
99.	LIBRES, MICHAEL Z.	3313	22-0687	MS18625		Renewal
100.	LUGSANAY, ANTERO M.	3317	2021-0340	9868LM		Renewal
101.	RENCONADA, NOEL B.	3322	2021-0345		1501-33821	Renewal
102.	MACO, ROSALINDA R.	3331	2021-0352		1501-23425	Renewal
103.	LIGAD, KEN WORTH V.	3340	2022-0450		1520-69231	Renewal
104.	CATILO, AZMAR A.	3354	2021-1135		1501-191021	Renewal
105.	LINAGA, ERIC E.	3355	2021-1439		1501-248971	Renewal
106.	LUIB, CRESTINE E.	3356	2021-1136		1501-265603	Renewal
107.	PALACIO, MERLIE F.	3362	2022-0233		1501-341467	Renewal
108.	MAINIT, NUMERIANO T.	3363	2021-1138		1501-301263	Renewal
109.	RIVERO JR, MERDONIO E.	3396	2021-0390		1508-88414	Renewal
110.	ANGOT, HERMINIANO J.	3406	2021-0398		1501-173550	Renewal
111.	MIASCO, ROSELO C.	3408	2021-0400		1501-273502	Renewal
112.	BOJOCAN, JUNNEL T.	3409	2021-0401		1501-171697	Renewal
113.	GUMBAN, DUNDEE J.	3410	2021-0402		1501-35201	Renewal
114.	LUMBRES, JERWIN G.	3414	2021-0405		1501-164390	Renewal
115.	CACAO, MARJHON A.	3452	2021-1683	DO53682		Renewal
116.	CATALON, LEONARD T.	3458	2021-0437		1501-263101	Renewal
117.	GULAY, NENITO D.	2319	2021-0602	7532LU		Renewal
118.	BALABALA, MAURITO P.	1459	2021-0088	9863LU		Renewal
119.	BASADRE, SULPECIO JR. C.	1719	2021-0938	7538LU		Renewal
120.	MONTECLAVO, MA. EMELYN S.	3205	2021-0241		1508-97124	Renewal
121.	LONGAKIT, RONALD P.	0066	2021-0978		1501-35674	Renewal
122.	MASUECOS, BENZENE E.	1255	2021-0079		1501-286892	Renewal
123.	SALADO, RUBEN O.	2347	2021-0134		1501-179430	Renewal
124.	PATAGAN, LORD RAVEN T.	3338	2021-0357		1524-38380	Renewal
125.	GASTARDO, PEDRO JR. E.	1755	2020-0290	MS40687		Renewal
126.	CAVITE, JOSEF D.	1336	2021-0081	7716LU		Renewal
127.	CUBELO, MYRA ME A.	3444	22-0948	225ZCZ		Renewal
128.	SALADO, RUBEN O.	2347	2021-0134		1501-179430	
129.	ESPINA, ANIANITO S.	0329	2021-0019	864ZOD		Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
130.	DEL CARMEN, CECILIO S.	0502	2021-0482		1501-315725	Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
131.	ROSALES, DIONISIO M.	1270	17-0023		1501-335610	Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
132.	POLVOROSA, BARTOLOME JR.	1427	2021-0549		1501-246013	Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
133.	MERLIN, JONNAS C.	2658	2021-0850		1501-121829	Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
134.	ESPINOSA, BRIGILDO M.	2726	2022-0181	892ZTI		Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
135.	MASUHAY, OSCAR O.	2935	2021-0960	291ZMI		Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
136.	TORRES, JULAR P.	3211	2021-0247	3403IB		Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
137.	GA, BARTOLOME P.	3272	23-1363	265ZMC		Renewal/Amendment of Franchise

138.	MEGULLAS, MANUEL R.	3325	2021-0348	221ZJA		Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
139.	LUTA, RICHARD M.	3412	2021-1550	363ZLA		Renewal/Amendment of Franchise
140.	REYES, ROLANDO P.	1088	23-0080	515ZQB		Amendment of Franchise
141.	ELANO, ELESIO L.	1395	23-1307	103ZQG		Amendment of Franchise
142.	RUIZ, MARITES S.	1465	23-1209		1501-179408	Amendment of Franchise
143.	CAMBAYA, PELARITO M.	1596	23-0887	979ZTG		Amendment of Franchise
144.	SUPERA, VIRGINIA R.	2141	22-0159	250ZPW		Amendment of Franchise
145.	CASILE, ROBERT S.	2338	22-0782	599ZTE		Amendment of Franchise
146.	POLVOROSA, BARTOLOME JR. T	2479	22-0391		1501-259665	Amendment of Franchise
147.	SAMPAYAN, GERLIE B.	0374	23-0030	347ZLV		Amendment of Franchise
148.	JIAO, JONARD B.	0806	23-0922	703ZKU		Amendment of Franchise
149.	BANKS, JOCELYN M.	2543	23-0915	530ZPV		Amendment of Franchise

1144
1145
1146
1147
1148
1149
1150
1151
1152
1153
1154
1155
1156
1157
1158
1159
1160
1161
1162
1163
1164
1165
1166
1167
1168
1169
1170
1171
1172
1173
1174
1175
1176
1177
1178
1179
1180
1181
1182
1183
1184
1185
1186
1187
1188

RESOLVED FURTHERMORE: That copies of this resolution be furnished the Honorable City Mayor, the Tricycle and Trisikad Franchising Office, and the City Treasurer, all of this city, for their information and appropriate action.

- - - - -

1. CALENDAR OF BUSINESS

A. Pending Matters: None

B. Urgent Matters:

- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as URGENT re: Local Finance Committee Resolution No.030, series 2023, A Resolution Recommending to the Local Chief Executive and the Sangguniang Panlungsod the Granting of Additio

Councilor Bayana was recognized.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

I have here Mr. Chairman a Resolution of the Local Finance Committee, unnumbered Resolution. Recommending on additional honorarium and to several employees of the City as well as additional wages for Job-Order employees Mr. Chairman. May I move Mr. Chairman that the corresponding Ordinance be taken up on first reading Mr. Chairman.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

Is there any second, that we consider this urgent Appropriation Ordinance under first reading?

HON. SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS:

Is there any objection? Hearing none? The motion is APPROVED.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Before any further motion Mr. Chairman, individual copies have been distributed to the members of the August body. But before any motion Mr. Chairman, may I add a Paragraph 2 under Section 2 to read as follows:

1189 *“The above in additional honorarium for Daycare workers, whole session or half*
 1190 *session, and those covered by Contracts of Service shall be apply if they have been so*
 1191 *engaged in the City Government for at least 6 months, continuously or by accumulation up*
 1192 *until October 31, 2023 and now are still employed on December 15, 2023.”*

1193
 1194 *3rd paragraph will be actually similar to the 2nd paragraph of Section 3. The 3rd*
 1195 *paragraph from the Section 2 will read as follows:*

1196
 1197 *“Those who does not meet the qualification but whose engagement, continuously*
 1198 *or by accumulation, up until October 31, 2023. (There is a typographical error, Mr.*
 1199 *Chairman) would equal the periods provided below shall receive a prorated amount of the*
 1200 *Additional Wages as follows:*

1201
 1202 *Length of service or number of months and percentage.*

1203
 1204 *5 months- 90%,*
 1205 *4 months-70%,*
 1206 *3 months-50%.”*

1207
 1208 *With the additional 2 paragraphs under Section 2 Mr. Chairman. May I move that*
 1209 *the proposed Ordinance be taken up on 2nd reading Mr. Chairman?*

1210
 1211
 1212 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1213
 1214 *There is now a motion that this proposed Ordinance, appropriating Additional*
 1215 *Honorarium and Additional wages be taken up under 2nd reading. Is there any second?*

1216
 1217 **HON. SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS:**

1218
 1219 *Second.*

1220
 1221 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1222
 1223 *Duly seconded. Discussion? With the amendments ha? You try to make sure that*
 1224 *the amendments are recorded or stated correctly here under section 2.*

1225
 1226 **MS. EDNA B. SIEGA/ ACTING SP SECRETARY:**

1227
 1228 *Yes, Mr. Chair.*

1229
 1230 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1231
 1232 *Okay. Objection? Hearing none? The motion is APPROVED.*

1233
 1234 **HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:**

1235
 1236 *May I move for the approval of the proposed Ordinance of 2nd reading Mr.*
 1237 *Chairman.*

1238
 1239 **HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:**

1240
 1241 *There is now a motion that we approve the proposed Ordinance granting*
 1242 *Additional Honorarium and Additional wages for the stated employees or workers under*
 1243 *certain conditions that are stated here under 2nd reading? Is there any second?*

1244
 1245 **HON. SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS:**

1246
1247
1248
1249
1250
1251
1252
1253
1254

1255

1256
1257
1258
1259
1260
1261
1262
1263
1264

1265

1266

1267

1268
1269

1270

1271

1272

1273
1274
1275

1276
1277
1278
1279
1280
1281
1282
1283
1284
1285
1286
1287
1288
1289
1290
1291
1292
1293

Second.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA / PRESIDING OFFICER:

Duly seconded. Discussion? Objection? Hearing none. The proposed Ordinance that would appropriate Additional Honorarium and Additional wages is hereby Approved under 2nd reading.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Ah before the third the motion for the approval on third reading Mr. Chairman, I was just like to state of the record that the original proposal of the Local Finance Committee is to, was to require both the contractual employees as well as the job order employees to have served for ten months up to October 31, 2023, the Committee on Appropriations was able to bargain from the Local Finance Committee to lower the requirements to six months, Mr. Chairman. The Local Finance Committee also emphasized that any additional adjustments as to the period would be difficult to comply from the financial aspect, Mr. Chairman. That is why the requirement is that they should have been employed for at least six months to receive the full amount of the benefits Mr. Chairman.

PRESIDING OFFICER: HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA:

And that they have been still engaged up to October 31?

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Yes, until December 15, because the additional honorarium as well as the additional wages who would be incorporated the December 15 payrolls Mr. Chairman.

PRESIDING OFFICER: HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA:

So until December 15?

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Yes, but the reckoning of six months period should be January to October 31 Mr. Chairman. May I move for the approval of the propose ordinance on third and final reading Mr. Chairman.

Before the approval the Presiding Officer instructed the Acting SP Secretary, Ms. Edna B. Siega, to read the title of the ordinance, which pertains to the appropriation of funds from the general fund savings for the current year.

The motion was approved.

The motion to approve on 2nd reading was presented and approved. Thereafter, a motion to approve on 3rd and final reading was presented and approved, to wit:

On motion of Honorable Jose Expeditus B. Bayana, seconded by Honorable Sebastian Ric A. Nagas, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: That the following Appropriation Ordinance, be as it is hereby enacted, to wit:

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING A SUM FROM SAVINGS UNDER THE GENERAL FUND FOR THE CURRENT YEAR TO BE MADE AVAILABLE FOR FURTHER APPROPRIATION, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, as it is ordained by the Sangguniang Panlungsod of the City of Surigao, in a session duly assembled that:

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION: A sum taken from savings under the General Fund for the Current is hereby appropriated for additional honorarium of certain City Government personnel, and additional wages of Job Order personnel of the City Government.

SECTION 2. ADDITIONAL HONORARIUM. The following shall be entitled to Additional Honorarium in the amounts provided below:

- a) Barangay Health Workers, both appointed by the City Government and the Punong Barangays who are accredited by the City Health Office - Php 2,300.00 each;
- b) Barangay Health Workers Aides - 1,000.00 each;
- c) Barangay Sanitation Implementor - 2,000.00 each;
- d) Barangay Blood Coordinating Council Members - 2,000.00 each;
- e) Day Care Worker (Whole Session) - 11,000.00 each;
- f) Day Care Worker (Half Session) - 6,000.00 each;
- g) Those covered by Contract of Service - 12,000.00 each and
- h) Head, Office of Senior Citizens Affairs - 15,000.00.

The above additional honorarium for Day Care Workers, whole session or half session, and those covered by Contract of service shall apply if they have been so engaged by the City Government for at least 6 months, continuously or by accumulation up until October 31, 2023 and are still employed on December 15, 2023.

Those who does not meet the qualification but whose engagement, continuously or by accumulation, up until October 31, 2023 would equal the periods provided below shall receive a prorated amount of the Additional Wages as follows:

Length of Services (No. of	Percentage
5 months	90%
4 months	70%
3 months	50%

SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL WAGES FOR JOB ORDER EMPLOYEES. Job Oder Personnel who have been engaged in the current year for at least six (6) months, continuously or by accumulation, up until October 31, 2023 and who is still engaged on December 15, 2023 shall be entitled to Additional Wages of Twelve Thousand Pesos (Php12,000.00).

Those who does not meet the qualification but whose engagement, continuously or by accumulation, up until October 31, 2023 would equal the periods provided below shall receive a prorated amount of the Additional Wages as follows:

Length of Services (No. of	Percentage
5 months	90%
4 months	70%
3 months	50%

SECTION 4. PERIOD TO RELEASE THE ADDITIONAL HONORARIUM AND WAGES. The Additional Honorarium and Additional Wages shall be incorporated in the corresponding payrolls and released to the grantees on December 15, 2023.

SECTION 5. AUTHORIZATION, The City Treasurer, City Accountant, and City Budget Officer are hereby authorized to utilized the savings of the General Fund for the current year for the purposes stated in this Ordinance.

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVITY. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately.

Enacted on November 23, 2023.

SPONSORED BY: HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA

Chairman, Committee on Appropriation

- - - - -

- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as URGENT re: Local Finance Committee Resolution No.031, series 2023, A Resolution Recommending to the Local Chief Executive and the Sangguniang Panlungsod the Granting of Year-End Cash Incentive to Regular Employees in Line with the Surigao City Employees Association (SURCEMA) Collective Negotiations Agreement,

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Next, Mr. Chairman is the proposed ordinance appropriating a sum to be sourced from savings of the maintenance and other operating expenses (MOOE) for the grant of the Collective Negotiation Agreement (CNA) incentive to regular employees and elected officials as members of the Surigao City Employees Association (SURCEMA), and additional appropriation for the grant of the Service Recognition Incentive (SRI) to be taken from allowable sources, and for other purposes. Firstly Mr. Chairman under the guidelines issued by the Department of Budget and Management the maximum allowable Collective Negotiation Agreement incentive that can be granted is Thirty Thousand Pesos (P30,000). However, for again for, based on the financial capacity of the City Government as of now, the Local Finance Committee recommended the amount of Twenty Five Thousand Pesos (P25,000) with requirement that he has been a regular employee or elected officials for at least nine months as of October 31, 2022, otherwise he will be receiving a prorated equivalent of the amount. Secondly, the grant of the Service Recognition Incentive although there are still no guideline on the matter Mr. Chairman is included in the ordinance in anticipation of the guidelines that may be issued by the National Government through the Department of Budget and Management. This is in order for us to not anymore have a session Mr. Chairman after the guidelines have come out.

PRESIDING OFFICER: HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA:

So, they are two benefits here the CNA and SRI. The Service Recognition Incentive as well as the CNA is the Collective Negotiation Agreement incentive. You are proposing for Twenty Five Thousand (P25,000) for CNA while the grant of the service recognition incentive is silent considering that we do not have as yet the guidelines that has been issued or that will be issued by the Department of Budget and Management.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Yes Mr. Chairman the Twenty Five Thousand Pesos (P25,000) is actually the recommended amount by the Local Finance Committee Mr. Chairman. This is because

1403 *aside from the additional honorarium for the contractual employees and other city*
 1404 *government employees as well as the job order employees the City Government will be*
 1405 *giving out the Collective Negotiation Agreement incentive possibly the Service Recognition*
 1406 *Incentive plus the Performance Based Bonus Mr. Chairman. We have, the Local Finance*
 1407 *Committee took everything into consideration before coming out with the recommended*
 1408 *amounts Mr. Chairman.*

1409 **PRESIDING OFFICER: HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA:**

1410 *So, what's now the pleasure of the Committee on Appropriation?*

1411 **HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:**

1412 *May I move Mr. Chairman that the proposed ordinance be taken up on first*
 1413 *reading, Mr. Chairman.*

1414 Before the approval, Hon. Alfonso S. Casurra, the Presiding Officer, instructs the
 1415 Acting SP Secretary, Ms. Edna B. Siega, to proceed with the first reading of a proposed
 1416 ordinance. Ms. Edna B. Siega reads the title of the ordinance, which involves appropriating
 1417 funds from savings for the Collective Negotiation Agreement (CNA) incentive for regular
 1418 employees and elected officials who are members of the Surigao City Employees
 1419 Association (SURCEMA). Additionally, it includes an additional appropriation for the
 1420 Service Recognition Incentive (SRI) from allowable sources.

1421

1422 The motion to approve on 2nd reading was presented and approved. Thereafter, a
 1423 motion to approve on 3rd and final reading was presented and approved, to wit:

1424

1425

1426 On motion of Honorable Jose Expeditus B. Bayana, seconded by Honorable
 1427 Sebastian Ric A. Nagas, it was unanimously

1428

1429 **RESOLVED:** That the following Appropriation Ordinance, be as it is hereby
 1430 enacted, to wit:

1431

1432

1433

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 12

1434

Series of 2023

1435

1436

1437

1438

1439

1440

1441

1442

1443

1444

1445

1446

1447

1448

1449

1450

1451

1452

1453

1454

The Sangguniang Panlungsod of the City of Surigao, in a session duly
 Assembled, do hereby ORDAINS:

SECTION 1. SOURCE OF FUNDS. There shall be granted a Collective
 Negotiation Agreement (CNA) Incentive to Regular Employees and Elected Officials as
 Members of the Surigao City Employees Association (SURCEMA) sourced from the
 savings of the allowable items of the Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses (MOOE)
 Appropriations of all City Government Offices.

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. The amount provided in the immediately preceding Section is hereby appropriated for the grant of the Collective Negotiation Agreement (CNA) Incentive to Regular Employees and Elected Officials as Members of the Surigao City Employees Association (SURCEMA) in the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand Pesos (Php25,000.00) each: Provided that he has been a Regular Employee or Elected Officials for at least none (9) months as of October 31, 2023.

Those who do not meet the qualification shall receive a prorated CNA Cash Incentive as follows:

- 8 months but less than 9 months 90%
- 7 months but less than 8 months 80%
- 6 months but less than 7 months 70%
- 5 months but less than 6 months 60%
- 4 months bet less than 5 months 50%.

SECTION 3. THE GRANT OF THE SERVICE RECOGNITION INCENTIVE. There is hereby granted a Service Recognition Incentive (SRI) to qualified Regular Employees and Elected Officials of the City Government sourced from allowable sources based on the guidelines that may be issued by the Office of the President of the Republic of the Philippines and /or the Department of Budget and Management (DBM).

SECTION 4. GUIDELINES AND LIMITATIONS ON THE GRANT OF THE SERVICE RECOGNITION INCENTIVE (SRI). The Grant of the Service Recognition Incentive (SRI) shall be subject to the following conditions:

- a) The amount should be in accordance with the guidelines provided in the corresponding issuance of the Office of the President and/or the Department of Budget Management (DBM) which shall be uniform; in the event that the source of the funds for the purpose cannot satisfy the full amount as fixed in the OP and /or DBM guidelines, a lower amount may be granted subject to the sound discretion of the Local Finance Committee;
- b) The sources of the funds to be granted as SRI shall be from those provided in the issuance of the OP and /or DBM.
- c) The conditions and limitations stated in the issuance of the OP and/or DBM shall be strictly complied with; and
- d) In the event that there will be no issuance from the OP and/or DBP for the grant of an SRI, then no amount shall be disbursed in the form of an SRI.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVITY. This Appropriation Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its approval.

Enacted on December 6, 2023.

SPONSORED BY: HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA
Chairman, Committee on Appropriation

- - - - -

- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as URGENT, re letter of Atty. Jeffrey P. Galido, City Budget Officer, submitting the Supplemental Budget No. 07 for FY 2023 in the amount of Nine Million Fifteen Thousand Two Hundred Eighty-Two Pesos and 18/100 (P9,015,282.18).

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

Next, Mr. Chairman, is a request also denominated as urgent to pass an ordinance containing supplemental budget number 7 for CY 2023, in the amount of P9,015,282.18 these are source from savings from unfilled positions and these are sought to be realigned or to as salaries for personnel services of newly created positions plus payment for electricity expenses in the amount of P3, 699, 993.26 that would amount to P4,015, 282.00 then the balance of 5 million will be used to pay for the lot acquisition for the new cemetery. If we will recall, we have already authorized the city mayor to purchase a lot to be used as new public cemetery unfortunately no funds were available that is why this is requested for by the office of the city mayor.

May I move, Mr. Chairman, that the appropriation ordinance containing supplemental budget number 7 for CY 2023 be taken up on first reading, Mr. Chairman.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

There is now a motion that we approved this ah, we'll Calendar this under first reading, any second?

HON. SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS:

Second.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Any objection? Hearing none, the proposed ordinance is Calendared under first reading.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

May I move, Mr. Chairman, that the appropriation ordinance be taken up on second reading.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

There is now a motion that we consider this under second reading. Any second?

HON. SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS/JOEL E. TINIO:

Second.

HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA/PRESIDING OFFICER:

Objection? Hearing none, the motion is APPROVED. This is now taken under second reading.

Before the approval for 2nd reading, Hon. Alfonso S. Casurra, the Presiding Officer, discusses the allocation of 9 million pesos. Hon. Jose Expeditus B. Bayana clarifies that 5 million is intended for a loan amortization. The discussion covers the use of salary savings for abolished positions, appropriating funds for newly created positions, and allocating money for electricity expenses. The 20% development fund is mentioned, with 5 million pesos initially designated for loan amortizations now being reallocated for lot acquisitions. The Presiding Officer confirms the details, and after a motion and seconding, the proposed realignment of funds through supplemental budget No. 7 is approved under the second reading.

Thereafter, a motion to approve on 3rd and final reading was presented and approved, to wit:

On motion of Honorable Jose Expeditus B. Bayana, seconded by Honorable Sebastian Ric A. Nagas, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: That the following Appropriation Ordinance, be as it is hereby enacted, to wit:

286

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 13
Series of 2023

SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET NO. 07

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET NO. 07, IN THE AMOUNT OF NINE MILLION FIFTEEN THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED EIGHTY-TWO PESOS AND 18/100 (P9,015,282.18), TO BE MADE AVAILABLE FOR FURTHER APPROPRIATIONS AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

(Copies will be furnished upon the availability of the approved appropriation ordinance)

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVITY. This Appropriation Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its approval.

Enacted on December 6, 2023.

SPONSORED BY: HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA
Chairman, Committee on Appropriation

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

That would be all, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

- Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as URGENT, requesting the Sangguniang Panlungsod to pass a resolution authorizing the City Mayor to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with Surigao Esports Collective (SURECOL), represented by its Chief Gaming Officer for the holding of “Mayor Paul Dumlao Mobile Legends BB Christmas Cup 2023” on December 23, 2023

Councilor Edulzura was recognized.

HON. JENELYN EDULZURA:

Yes, Mr. Chair, thank you. Upon the review of the memorandum of agreement founds to be in order and advantage for the promotion of sports development such as Esports and type of city of Surigao, I move, Mr. Chair, for the adoption of my report, Mr. Chair.

The motion to adopt the said report was approved. Thereafter, a motion was presented and favorably seconded and approved, to wit:

RESOLUTION NO. 288 - 2023

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE HONORABLE CITY MAYOR PABLO YVES L. DURLAO II TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA) WITH SURIGAO ESPORTS COLLECTIVE (SURECOL), REPRESENTED BY ITS CHIEF GAMING OFFICER FOR THE HOLDING OF “MAYOR PAUL DURLAO MOBILE LEGENDS BB CHRISTMAS CUP 2023” ON DECEMBER 23, 2023.

WHEREAS, the Sangguniang Panlungsod was in receipt of indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as URGENT, requesting the Sangguniang Panlungsod to pass a resolution authorizing the City Mayor to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with Surigao Esports Collective (SURECOL), represented by its Chief Gaming Officer for the holding of “Mayor Paul Dumlao Mobile Legends BB Christmas Cup 2023” on December 23, 2023;

WHEREAS, electronic sports or Esports has been gaining steam worldwide, especially in the Philippines where the annual Palarong Pambansa in 2023 officially featured mobile and PC games for the first time in its 54-year history;

WHEREAS, the Surigao Esports Collective (Surecol) is the leading local grassroots Esports organization with relatively long and reliable experience in organizing successful tournaments;

WHEREAS, Surecol desires to assist the Surigao City local government unit (LGU) in developing and firming up the local Esports scene, with the end goal of establishing the city as an Esports powerhouse in Mindanao, one that is capable of sending players in national and international competitions;

WHEREAS, Surecol is organizing a citywide Mobile Legends BangBang (MLBB) tournament in December 2023, to be named "Mayor Paul Dumlao MLBB Christmas Cup 2023"

NOW THEREFORE, upon motion of the Honorable Jenelyn Edulzura seconded by Karl Duane A. Casurra, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: To pass a resolution authorizing the Honorable City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with Surigao Esports Collective (SURECOL), represented by its Chief Gaming Officer for the holding of “Mayor Paul Dumlao Mobile Legends BB Christmas Cup 2023” on December 23, 2023.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that copies of this resolution be furnished Honorable City Mayor Pablo Yves L. Dumlao II, and Surigao Esports Collective (SURECOL) for their information and appropriate action.

- - - - -

Councilor Bayana is hereby recognized.

HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:

1682 *Mr. Chairman, before we move to the next agenda item, I want to apologize for an*
 1683 *oversight. I still have one urgent matter that requires immediate attention.*

- 1684
- 1685
- 1686 • Indorsement from the City Mayor, denominated as URGENT re: Local
- 1687 Finance Committee Resolution No.032, series 2023, A Resolution
- 1688 Recommending the Granting of Performance Based Bonus (PBB) for
- 1689 Qualified City Officials and Employees, and the Priority Inclusion of
- 1690 Appropriation for Such Purpose in the Supplemental Budget For CY 2023.
- 1691
- 1692

1693 **HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:**

1694 *Mr. Chairman, it is the ordinance granting the Performance Based Bonus Mr.*
 1695 *Chairman. Actually, there was already an ordinance passed Mr. Chairman last year*
 1696 *because this incentive is granted as a consequence of the city being awarded as having*
 1697 *procured the Seal of Good Local Governance Mr. Chairman but the original ordinance*
 1698 *needs to be further refined Mr. Chairman thus the proposed ordinance Mr. Chairman.*
 1699 *May I move Mr. Chairman that the propose ordinance be taken up on first reading Mr.*
 1700 *Chairman.*

1701 **HON. SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS:**

1702 *Second.*

1703 **PRESIDING OFFICER: HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA:**

1704 *The proposed ordinance is taken under first reading, you read the ordinance.*

1705 **ACTING SP SECRETARY: MS. EDNA B. SIEGA:**

1706 *The proposed ordinance, an ordinance appropriating funds for the grant of a*
 1707 *Performance Based Bonus, and for other purposes.*

1708 **HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA:**

1709 *Ah, before any motion in connection with the second reading Mr. Chairman, a*
 1710 *repealing clause will be incorporated in the proposed ordinance as section 4, then the*
 1711 *effectivity clause will now become section 5 Mr. Chairman. The new section would read as*
 1712 *follows: "Repealing Clause. Any ordinance inconsistent with this ordinance is hereby*
 1713 *deemed modified and/or repealed", Mr. Chairman. May I move Mr. Chairman that the*
 1714 *proposed ordinance be taken up on second reading, Mr. Chairman.*

1715 **PRESIDING OFFICER: HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA:**

1716 *There is now a motion ah is there any second? Second to have this taken under*
 1717 *second reading.*

1718 **HON. SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS/JOEL E. TINIO:**

1719 *Second.*

1720 **PRESIDING OFFICER: HON. ALFONSO S. CASURRA:**

1721 *We go now to discussion, is this a condition upon the grant of or rather the, yes*
 1722 *being awarded as Seal of Local Governance Awardee?*

1723 Hon. Jose Expeditus B. Bayana explains that the proposed ordinance is a
 1724 consequence of the city being recognized as an awardee in the calendar year 2022. It was
 1725 also revealed that the city failed to attain this status this year due to issues related to fund
 1726 utilization and the perception of government service, leading to a poor outcome.

1727
1728
1729
1730
1731
1732
1733
1734
1735
1736
1737
1738
1739
1740
1741
1742
1743
1744
1745
1746
1747
1748
1749
1750
1751
1752
1753
1754
1755
1756
1757
1758
1759
1760
1761
1762
1763
1764
1765
1766
1767
1768
1769
1770
1771
1772
1773
1774
1775
1776
1777
1778
1779
1780
1781
1782

Hon. Bayana moves for the approval of the proposed ordinance on the second reading, emphasizing the hope that the municipality can regain the SGLG status in the future to qualify for the associated incentives.

The motion to approve on 2nd reading was presented and approved. Thereafter, a motion to approve on 3rd and final reading was presented and approved, to wit:

On motion of Honorable Jose Expeditus B. Bayana, seconded by Honorable Sebastian Ric A. Nagas, it was unanimously

RESOLVED: That the following Appropriation Ordinance, be as it is hereby enacted, to wit:

289

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE NO. 14
Series of 2023

SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET NO. 08

**AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE GRANT OF A
PERFORMANCE BASED BONUS (PBB), AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.**

(Copies will be furnished upon the availability of the approved appropriation ordinance)

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVITY. This Appropriation Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its approval.

Enacted on December 6, 2023.

SPONSORED BY: HON. JOSE EXPEDITUS B. BAYANA
Chairman, Committee on Appropriation

- - - - -

A. Business of the Day:

None

- - - - -

PRIVILEGE HOUR/SPEECH

None

- - - - -

OTHER MATTERS

None

- - - - -

ADJOURNMENT

There being no other matters discussed, the 43rd Regular Session was adjourned at 3:57 o'clock in the afternoon of December 06, 2023.

(As to what transpired in the discussion, the transcribed stenographic notes of the same are kept and filed in the SP Office for record purposes and reference.)

- - - - -

CLOSING PRAYER:

HON. JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI:

In the father of the son of the Holy Spirit. Amen.

Angel of God, my guardian dear, to whom God's love commits me here,
ever this day, be at my side, to light and guard,
to Rule and guide. Amen.

And the name of the Father, the son, and the Holy Spirit.
Amen.

- - - - -

APPROVED, this ____ day of December 2023.

WE HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing statements, resolutions and the like were passed and approved by us, members of the Sangguniang Panlungsod of the City of Surigao, Province of Surigao del Norte.

EDNA B. SIEGA
Acting Sanggunian Secretary

SEBASTIAN RIC A. NAGAS
City Councilor

CACEL R. AZARCON
City Councilor

JOEL E. TINIO
City Councilor

JOENIL B. ALDONZA
City Councilor

JOSHUA EMILIO S. GELI
City Councilor

BALTAZAR C. ABIAN
City Councilor

NOEL CHRISTIAN G. CATRE, JR.
City Councilor

JOSEPH JOEY S. YUIPCO
City Councilor

KARL DUANE A. CASURRA
City Councilor

JENELYN EDULZURA
SK Federated President

1821
1822
1823
1824
1825
1826
1827
1828
1829

ATTESTED BY:

ALFONSO S. CASURRA
City Vice Mayor
Presiding Officer